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State of Connecticut 

Office of Policy and Management 

 

NONPROFIT COLLABORATION INCENTIVE GRANT PROGRAM 

REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS (RFA) 

 

 

 

 

Amendment 1 

 

NCIGP Project Application:  The Nonprofit Collaboration Incentive Grant Program (NCIP) Project Application has 

been revised. The changes will allow applicants to insert text to the following sections of the application: Part 1; 

Part 2.B; Part 2.C; and Part 4.B.   Applicants should use the revised application forms in submitting their 

application.  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Amendment 2 

NCIP Questions and Answers 

 

NOTE:  On December 11, 2013, OPM released the Request For Applications (RFA) for the Nonprofit 

Collaboration Incentive Grant Program (NCIP).  Below are answers to the questions asked by 

prospective applicants. 

 

1. Would the eligibility for grant funds under the NCIP be available to an association 

seeking funds to offer educational programs for its members and Connecticut 

residents? 

 

The NCIP supports one-time infrastructures costs to implement the consolidation of programs and 

services resulting from the collaboration of two or more nonprofit organizations.  The NCIP does 

not support the operation of programs, unless, it is a component of a larger capital project.   

Please refer to the Section E of the NCIP Guidelines and Application Instructions.   

 

 

2. Please explain in detail one-time infrastructure costs to implement consolidations of 

program and services resulting from the collaboration of two or more nonprofit 

organizations.   

 

The NCIP may award one-time funding expenditures (non-recurring funds) for capital assets such 

as facilities, equipment, technology or transportation to facilitate a collaboration’s consolidation 

project(s).  THE NCIP supports one time funding for a collaboration of two or more 501(c)(3) 

nonprofit organizations that work together on a common project or consolidation of program and 

services. Project is defined as an undertaking by a collaboration to improve a component of their 

participant organizations’ infrastructure to mutual advantage.  Consolidation is the combining of 

programs and services including, but not limited, to joint ventures involving shared business 

operations, functions or services. Any organizations and/or subcontractors that have received 
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funding in previous rounds of the NCIP are not eligible to submit an application for this RFA or 

any other NCIP RFA that may be released in the future. 

 

3. Please confirm that arts organizations are permitted to apply. 

 

The RFA requires applicants to be a collaboration of two or more nonprofit organizations 

providing services in Connecticut.  Any entity that is a duly formed 501(c)(3) organization is 

eligible to form a collaboration and submit an application.  The applicant must meet all 

requirements of the RFA to be eligible for funding. 

 

4. Collaborating agencies are members of a consortium that receives a line item 

appropriation.  Does this affect eligibility? 

 

The RFA supports the collaboration of two or more nonprofit organizations that work together on 

a common project or consolidation of programs and services to improve a component of their 

participant’s organization’s infrastructure to mutual advantage. Based on the information 

provided, it does not appear that it would affect eligibility. However, the applicant must adhere to 

all requirements of the RFA to be considered for funding.  The applicant should describe the line 

item appropriation and as well as any other State funds in Part 2 C of the NCIP Guidelines and 

Application Instructions. 

 

5. Does each member of the collaboration complete Part 2 only or are there other parts 

required of each member? 

 

Each participant organization of the collaboration must complete Part 2.  The RFA does not 

require any additional “Parts” of the Application to be completed by each participant organization.  

However, each participant organization should submit information that demonstrates their 

commitment to affirmative action, as required by the Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies § 

46A-68j-30(10). The information for each participant organization should be included in the 

application.  Please refer to the “NOTE” included in Section K of the NCIP Guidelines and 

Application Instructions. 
 

6. Are the participant organizations required to submit Form B or C Non-Discrimination 

Certifications individually? 

 

Yes, each participant organization must submit the required Non-Discrimination Certificates 

(Form B or C, whichever is applicable).  The required forms for each participant organization 

should be included in the application. 

 

7. How do you submit information on the line item budget for technology projects which 

are not limited to equipment purchases? 

 

The Application Form Part 4 B (Budget) has been amended to allow for entry of technology 

projects other than software and hardware. The amended Application is posted on OPM’s 

website and DAS website  at http://www.biznet.ct.gov/SCP_Search/BidResults.aspx 

 

 

8. Should the budget reflect individual cost for each participant organization? 

 

Yes, costs allocated to each of the participant organizations should be documented in the budget 

and explained in the budget narrative.  For example, the budget form may show one line item 

with the total costs for participant organizations and the budget narrative may provide a detailed 

explanation of individual costs of each participant organization. 

 

http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=3006&Q=383284&opmNav_GID=1386
http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=3006&Q=383284&opmNav_GID=1386
http://das.ct.gov/cr1.aspx?page=15
http://www.biznet.ct.gov/SCP_Search/BidResults.aspx


Nonprofit Collaboration Incentive Grant Program Request for Applications Page 3 of 6 

 

9. Does collaboration with a government agency qualify?  

 

No.  A government agency is not a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization and, therefore, does not 

meet the eligibility requirements for the NCIP.   

 

10. Does a church qualify?  

 

A church or any other entity that is a duly formed 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization is eligible to 

form a collaboration and submit an application. 

 

11. What is the definition of one-time costs?  

 

The NCIP may award one-time funding expenditures (non-recurring funds) for capital assets such 

as facilities, equipment, technology or transportation to facilitate a collaboration’s consolidation 

project(s). The NCIP does not support on-going operating costs. Any organizations and/or 

subcontractors that have received funding in previous rounds of the NCIP are not eligible to 

submit an application for this RFA or any other NCIP RFA that may be released in the future. 

 

12. What qualifies as Independent Financial Audits? Do internal financial statements 

count?  If an entity does not have audited financials or qualified independent audits, 

will 990s be accepted? 

 

If available, CPA-prepared financial statements for the most recent two years must be submitted 

by all participant organizations.  Otherwise, copies of IRS Tax Form 990 (Return of Organizations 

Exempt From Income Tax) for the most recent two years, plus any additional forms or 

attachments submitted to the IRS with the return will be accepted. 

 

13. Participating agencies of a collaboration applied and received funds from the first 

round of the NCIP.  Does this exclude those agencies from partnering with another 

collaboration on this round of NCIP? 

 

Yes, organizations and/or subcontractors of a collaboration that have received funds in the past 

are not eligible to receive funds from this NCIP RFA.   

 

14. How many applications were submitted in the last NCIP round? 

 

 A total of four applications were submitted in response to the 2012 RFA. 

 

15. How many applications were funded in the last round? 

 

 One applicant received funds in the last 2012. 

 

16. What was the average funding amount in the last NCIP round? 

  

 The grant amount awarded in 2012 was $84,493. 

 

17. What was the range (minimum funding award and maximum funding award)? 

 

 One grant was awarded in 2012.  See response to Question 16. 

 

18. How much in total was awarded to grantees under the program? 

 

Since the inception of the NCIP $1,256,409 has been awarded to grantees. 
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19. Please provide a list of projects awarded funding during the past two NCIP rounds and 

please note if the previous answers do not apply to the current funding round. 

 

The following grants were awarded during the past two NCIP rounds: 

 
Community Action Agency Collaboration-to develop a new technology system to align the 

software, intake process and case management systems among participant organizations of the 

collaboration; 

 

Wheeler Clinic-to develop an integrated information and technology system among participating 

organizations of the collaboration; and 

 

Action for Bridgeport Community Development-to create and implement a web-based platform to 

increase the capacity for the collaboration’s technology systems. 

 

The questions and answers to rounds 1 and 2 were not included as part of this RFA.  The current 

RFA has been revised and responses to previously asked questions may or may not apply.   

 

 

20. Does OPM expect to award the entire $3,743,591 for new projects under this program? 

If not, what is the expected total amount awarded? 

 

The current amount of funds available for grant awards is $3,743,591.  The total amount 

awarded will depend upon the number of applications received, reviewed and selected for a 

possible grant award.  

 

21. If an organization is undertaking a management contract to manage the services of 

another (Human Resources, Implementation of an EMR, Billing/Financial Management) 

can grant funds be used to pay for these services?   

 

The intent of the RFA is to encourage and promote collaboration among nonprofit organizations.  

If the applicant is establishing a collaboration of two or more nonprofit organizations that will 

work together on a common project or consolidation of program and services, grant funds may 

be used for management services.  However, funds must not be used to cover the cost of staff.  

Please refer to Section G of the NCIP Guidelines and Application Instructions.    

 

22. Is there a time limit to paying for these services? If so, what is the time limit? 

 

The RFA does not specify a timeframe for implementation and completion of a project.  The RFA 

requires that an applicant include in its Project Application a detailed schedule of the timeframe 

of the project, including cash flow requirements.  Please refer Part 4 of the NCIP Guidelines and 

Application Instructions. 

 

23. If staffing from one organization is working on the set up of an Electronic Medical 

Record or a new hardware platform for the partnering organizations are staff costs 

allowable for these discrete projects? 

 

No. The RFA states that staffing is a non-eligible costs.  Please refer Section G of the NCIP 

Guidelines and Application Instructions. 

 

24. Would an applicant proposing to manage the development of several 

functions/systems of a partnering organization under a management agreement such 

as a Human Resources System/Function, an Electronic Medical Record, and 



Nonprofit Collaboration Incentive Grant Program Request for Applications Page 5 of 6 

 

finance/payroll be considered one project?  These projects would be related to the 

management services provided by the applicant to the partner organization. 

 

Based on your description, this could be submitted as one application. 

 

25. Refinancing of existing loans is an eligible use of grant funds. It is also stated that 

grant funds cannot be used to supplant other funds, and that grant funds cannot be 

used to cover costs incurred before the execution of the grant agreement. Almost by 

definition, using grant funds to refinance loans would in effect be the supplanting of 

other funds and be the covering of costs incurred previously. Can applicants assume 

that these two restrictions do not apply when one is using grant funds for refinancing?  

 

Yes, these two restrictions would not apply to refinancing of existing loans. However, the 

applicant must adhere to all other requirements of the RFA to be considered for funding. 

 

26. Is there de facto maximum limit on the amount which will be granted (besides $3.7 

million? 

 

The RFA states that the current amount of available funding is $3,743,591 for new projects and 

the minimum grant amount for a project is $25,000.  Grants typically should not exceed 25% of 

the combined total annual operating budgets of all nonprofit organizations participating in the 

collaboration.  Funding for facility purchase, improvements and facility loan refinancing shall be 

lesser than the current market value of the property net of: (1) any liens on the property and (2) 

any outstanding mortgage balance.  The amount of any subsequent awarded grant will be 

adjusted according to the lowest appraised value of the facility.  No other minimum or maximum 

amount per project is required by the RFA.   

 

27. Does each project requested require 2 or 3 bids? 

 

Bids are not required to submit an application for funding.  Bidding would be a contractual issue 

for those applicants selected.  The budget should provide the Evaluation Committee with a solid 

understanding of the cost of the project, including its various cost components.  If selected for a 

possible grant award, the applicant will be required to conduct a competitive procurement 

process to secure a vendor. However, “sole source” procurements may be allowed by the State 

under certain circumstances. One possible exception would be for a vendor having proprietary 

services or patent rights.  In such a case, an applicant must request a waiver from the 

competitive procurement process and provide in detail the reasons for the waiver and other 

supporting evidence.  

 

28. If there are multiple projects which can be performed by a General Contractor, is a 

single bid broken down with estimates by each project permissible? 

 

 See response to Question 27. 

 

29. If the collaboration includes multiple nonprofits currently and allows for expansion to 

include additional nonprofits, how or in what form are you looking for that 

collaboration to be demonstrated?   

 

The applicant should clearly describe in Part 2 of the Application the method used to form the 

collaboration for this NCIP RFA.  Information may include, but not limited to: how the participant 

organizations came together to form the collaboration, how were the participant organizations 

selected, and what criteria were used to select the participant organizations.  Additionally, if the 

collaboration has a plan for additional organizations to join the collaboration in the future, the 

applicant should provide a detailed statement setting forth the approach that will be taken when 



Nonprofit Collaboration Incentive Grant Program Request for Applications Page 6 of 6 

 

doing so.  Applicants are not expected to develop or include a formal plan or procedure with their 

application. 

 

30. Is it OPM’s intent to execute a single contract only with a lead organization although 

there may be multiple collaborators? 

 

Yes, it is the intent to execute one contract signed by all parties.  The RFA does not include the 

term “lead organization”.  One participant organization must serve as the Single Point of Contact 

for the nonprofit collaboration and, as such, be authorized to represent all participant 

organizations during the application process.  In the event an applicant is selected, all participant 

organizations in the nonprofit collaboration may be included in the negotiations of a possible 

grant award contract.  If granted an award, one participant organization must serve as a 

Fiduciary Agent to administer the grant award on behalf of the collaboration.  The Single Point of 

Contact and the Fiduciary Agent for the grant need not be the same organization.  Information on 

the Single Point of Contact and the Fiduciary Agent must be included in Part 1 of the NCIP 

Guidelines and Application Instructions. 

 

31. Is there a dollar match required? 

 

The RFA does not require matching funds. However, priority will be given to those applicants that 

maximize the State’s investment by leveraging additional funding from federal or private sources. 

 

32. If a match is required, can the match be leveraged on potential savings to multiple 

nonprofit organizations which will participate in the project?  Example:  Though the 

Nonprofit Collaborative Incentive Project funds itself will not pay directly for 

efficiencies achieved through joint server, single telephone system, shared video 

streaming & conferencing, shared receptionist, shared conference rooms, etc. can 

those funds acquired through private fundraising be considered part of the match to 

offset funded NCIP projects for parking, windows, heating and cooling, bathroom 

renovation, office space redesign, etc.? 

 

See response to Question 30. 

 

33. If NCIP funding for various projects expedites the inclusion of more nonprofits in a 

specific collaboration thus facilitating access to lower nonprofit financing, can this be 

considered part of the match? 

 

See response to Question 30. 

 

34. Is there flexibility on the equity requirement? 

 

Assuming your question relates to the requirements for facility purchase, improvement and 

facility loan refinancing, there is no flexibility on the equity requirement.  In the absence of a 

recent appraisal, an applicant may use the municipality’s assessed value of the property to help 

calculate the amount of the grant funding request.  The calculated amount is only an estimate for 

the purposes of the application.  If selected for a possible grant award, the applicant will be 

required to submit one or two appraisals to satisfy the requirements of the application.  The 

amount of any subsequent award grant will be adjusted according to the lowest appraised value 

of the facility.   


